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Purchasing Department 

530 Water Street 

Oakland, CA 94607 

 

Date: August 29, 2014 

 

ADDENDUM No. 1 

 

RFQ No. 14-15/09 – Managed Print Services 

 

This Addendum modifies the original RFQ Documents for the above RFQ.  Acknowledge receipt of this 

addendum in the space provided on the RFQ Acknowledgement and Signature Form (Attachment 

3).  Failure to do so may disqualify your Statement of Qualification. 

 

The following questions were submitted by the deadline and are answered in this addendum. 

1. Question:  No pricing is to be submitted at this time, is that correct? 

 

Answer:  Yes, Pricing will be submitted by the RFQ finalists during the RFP stage. 

 

2. Question:  Does the Port own all its equipment right now? Including reprographics? 

 

Answer: Yes, Port owns all its equipment right now except for the two high volume reprographics 

printers we leased. 

 

3. Question:  Will the Port be replacing all printers? 

 

Answer:  All except for equipment less than two years old. There are very few printers that are 

less than two years old. The number of replacement copiers and printers will be determined by 

the assessments. 

 

4. Question:  Will the Port be responsible for buyout for the two reprographic printers? 

 

Answer:  The Port is planning on returning the two reprographic printers at the termination of 

the lease. 

 

5. Question:  Are Port employee badges proximity cards? 

 

Answer:  Yes. 
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6. Question:  How many employees are at the Port? 

 

Answer:  About 460 employees. 

 

7. Question:  How many computers are at the Port? 

 

Answer:  About 600 computers. 

 

8. Question:  Can we get a list of desktop printers and model numbers? 

 

Answer:  We don’t have this information readily available. The vast majority of printers are old. 

 

9. Question:  Are the majority of printers HP/Dell? 

 

Answer:  Yes. 

 

10. Question:  Are most printers on the network? 

 

Answer:  Most of the copiers and printers are on the network, but most desktop printers are not. 

 

11. Question:  Is the Port trying to eliminate standalone printers? Who will be in charge of replacing 

all standalone printers? 

 

Answer:  Yes, the Port is trying to eliminate standalone printers as much as possible. The chosen 

company will be replacing all standalone printers if needed. The actual number of printers will 

be determined by the assessment. 

 

12. Question:  Are desktop printers currently on the network? 

 

Answer:  Most are not. 

 

13. Question:  Does the Port have printing management in place? 

 

Answer:  No. We’re looking for that capability, however.  

 

14. Question:  Does the Port have current meter readings? 

 

Answer:  No. What is provided in the RFQ document for the copiers is what is available. 

 

15. Question:  Is the Port adverse to page count software? 

 

Answer:  No. 

 

16. Question:  How are jobs submitted to reprographics currently? 

 

Answer:  Emailed. 

 

17. Question:  Would reprographics find web submission valuable? 

 

Answer:  Yes. 
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18. Question:  Does the Port own the Konica/Minolta BizHubs? 

 

Answer:  No. 

 

19. Question:  Is the Port looking to replace the BizHubs? 

 

Answer:  Yes 

 

20. Question:  What are the models of the machines in Reprographics? 

 

Answer:  Konica/Minolta BizHub 1200 and BizHub C6501 

 

21. Question: Is the Port looking to replace machines in phases or all at once? 

 

Answer:  We’re expecting to use your expertise in determining the best method. 

 

22. Question:  After the vendors are narrowed down, will there be a site walkthrough? 

 

Answer:  Yes. 

 

23. Question:  Will each vendor do their own audit assessment? Uniform or standard? 

 

Answer:  Each vendor will do their own assessment. There’s not a standard assessment criteria 

at this time. 

 

24. Question:  Does the Port want only one vendor or multiple vendors? 

 

Answer:  The Port strongly desires only one vendor. 

 

25. Question:  Can the Port have the current vendor to erase hard drives from current equipment? 

 

Answer:  No. The chosen vendor from the RFP process will be responsible for this task. 

 

26. Question:  Are net billing in arrears or in advance? 

 

Answer:  Billing is to be done in arrears. 

 

27. Question:  Under Section E “Port Expectation and Goals”, Item VI, Page 4 of 17, are the 

Quarterly minimums per category of unit or per unit? 

 

Answer:  Per category. 

 

28. Question:  Does the Port wish to have a technician on site? 

 

Answer:  During the deployment phase – yes.  After that the Port expects the successful supplier 

to make that determination based on service level agreements (SLAs) and their own expertise in 

delivering Managed Print Services.  The Port can provide space for a technician if needed. 

 

29. Question:  Does the Port require a weekend service? 

 

Answer:  Yes, the Oakland International Airport is a 24x7 operation. 



RFQ. No. 14-15/09 – Addendum No. 1           Page 4 of 5 

 

  

30. Question:  Can the weekend service be “on-call” vs “on-site”? 

 

Answer:  On-call is fine; all Service Level Agreements remain in effect. 

 

31. Question: Is 4-hour response time sufficient for weekend service? 

 

Answer:  Yes 

 

32. Question:  How does the Port handle weekend service currently? 

 

Answer:  We call in a technician if needed 

 

33. Question:  Is the Port’s objective to have all printers on network, including desktop printers? 

 

Answer:  Yes 

 

34. Question:  How do you define Professional Services? 

 

Answer:  Professional Services is the name and form of contract that will be used. A copy of the 

sample contract is included in the RFQ document, attachment 9. 

 

35. Question:  How will the Port narrow down the finalist? Can you please describe the process? 

 

Answer: Your response to the RFQ and the Evaluation criteria listed in the RFQ document will 

be used to narrow down to the finalists. (See Section V - Evaluation Criteria on pages 13-14 of 

the RFQ) 

 

36. Question:  Will only the finalists be given the opportunity to respond to the RFP? 

 

Answer:  Yes. 

 

37. Question:  Describe the Port’s enterprise? 

 

Answer:  We’re primarily a Windows shop. The Port’s network spans all of the building and 

locations listed in the RFQ document. 

 

38. Question:  Does the Port have voice over IP? 

 

Answer:  Yes, the Port uses Shortel. 

 

39. Question:  Has the Port looked at anyone for Fax Gateway? 

 

Answer:  No. 

 

40. Question:  Do you have an idea of how many fax lines there are currently? 

 

Answer:  About 40 throughout all Port locations. 
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41. Question:  Does the Port desire to remain Windows-based? 

 

Answer:  Yes. 

 

42. Question:  Are questions confidential or public? 

 

Answer:  Public. 

 

43. Question:  Do you use thin clients? 

 

Answer:  Only some at the Airport, but we expect to expand some over the next few years. 

 

44. Question:  Do you need iOS or Android printing support? 

 

Answer:  Yes, wireless printing from iOS, Android, and Windows mobile devices is required 

 

45. Question:  Will the Port of Oakland allow exception to its Terms and Conditions? 

 

Answer:  On page 13 of 17 of the RFQ document under the Port Policy Requirements section, it 

states that “Any exception to the Port’s Professional Services Agreement must be clearly set forth 

in your qualification.” The Port discourages exceptions to the agreement. 

 

46. Question:  Will the Port sign a lease? 

 

Answer:  The Port’s preference is to be charged only for a per page print/copy pricing model 

instead using a traditional lease plus service/per page pricing model; however, traditional lease 

service/per page proposal will be considered. 

 

 


